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Foreman, PD-1090—91-18

1. Can a magistrate issuing a
warrant infer that an auto body

shop will have
when no facts in the

affidavit referred to such
equipment?

2. Does “ " justify the
warrantless seizure of the auto-
body-shop’s surveillance equipment
when police saw it recording live
footage while executing a search
warrant?



Presenter
Presentation Notes
1.  “The Fourteenth Court erred by holding that a magistrate could not infer from the warrant affidavit that an auto body shop would have a surveillance system. The Fourteenth Court held that before a magistrate could consider common knowledge, the matter must be ‘beyond dispute,’ a civil standard the Fourteenth Court grafted onto Fourth Amendment law.”

2. “The Fourteenth Court erred by holding that when officers see a surveillance system recording a location where a crime occurred two weeks prior, they do not have probable cause to seize the system’s hard drive unless they know what is on the hard drive prior to examining it.”

3.  “The Fourteenth Court erred by holding that the error required reversal, even under the standard for non-constitutional error, where the State’s remaining evidence was overwhelming and the defense non-existent.”

The victims in the case were in the process of conning Foreman out of a lot of money when he found out. Foreman and his cohorts tortured the two victims for several hours at his auto body shop. They escaped after tumbling, bound and gagged, from a moving vehicle in a volley of bullets. One of the victims identified the auto shop and picked Foreman out of a lineup. Police obtained a warrant for the shop to seize, among other things, surveillance equipment and video. During the search, police saw a t.v. monitor displaying live surveillance footage and seized the attached hard drive. After Foreman was charged with aggravated robbery and kidnapping, he filed a motion to suppress the surveillance video (recorded at the time of the offense) found on the drive. He pointed out that the warrant affidavit failed to explain the basis for the affiant’s belief that surveillance equipment would be found at the shop. The trial court denied the suppression motion. The surveillance video was admitted at trial, and Foreman was convicted.

On appeal, Foreman challenged the suppression ruling. A divided en banc court of appeals reversed on rehearing. It found no facts in the affidavit to show that a computer or surveillance equipment was involved in the crime and nothing from which to infer that such equipment would probably be found at the shop. It denied that it was a matter of common knowledge that businesses (particularly ones that store valuable, movable property) use surveillance systems, explaining that matters of common knowledge must be “so well known to the community as to be beyond dispute.” It also rejected the State’s plain-view argument that once officers saw a monitor displaying live surveillance footage of a crime scene, they had probable cause to believe a connected hard drive would contain evidence of a crime. The majority held that the incriminating character of the drive was not immediately apparent since officers had to examine it forensically before they knew whether it was associated with criminal activity. The majority also found the error harmful. A dissenting justice believed it was a fair inference that surveillance equipment would be found in the auto shop, noting that one only need look over head while in any store, restaurant or commercial property to recognize the ubiquitous nature of surveillance cameras. Another dissenter believed Foreman lacked standing and that any error was not harmful. 

The State contends that the inference that an auto shop would have surveillance equipment is similar to inferences upheld in other warrant cases. It also argues that “beyond dispute” is not the standard in criminal cases to determine whether something is common knowledge and does not belong in a probable-cause analysis. As to its plain-view argument, the State contends that the “immediately apparent” prong does not require actual knowledge, only probable cause. Barring a voluntary disclosure, police will never have sufficient information about the content of surveillance video, under the majority’s standard, to enable them to seize equipment under plain view or obtain a warrant. The State argues that, rather than viewing the evidence neutrally in its harm analysis, the court of appeals discounted the victims’ testimony (based on a view of their credibility that the jury clearly did not share) and improperly considered (in deciding guilt-phase harm) the trial court’s reliance on the video at the punishment phase.  
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Crider, PD-1070-19

Does a blood
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Does TEX. CODE McGuire, PD-0984-19
CRIM. PROC. art.
14.03(a)(1)’s
suspicious places
warrantless
arrest
authorization
have an exigency
requirement for
public arrests?



Presenter
Presentation Notes
1. “Does TEX. CODE CRIM. PROC. art. 14.03(a)(1) have an exigency requirement for warrantless arrests?”

2. “If Article 14.03(a)(1) has an exigency requirement for a warrantless arrest in public, it was satisfied here because the integrity of blood-alcohol- content evidence would have been compromised had Appellee been free to leave.”

McGuire filed a motion to suppress challenging his warrantless arrest for DWI that was made in public after he was involved in a fatal accident. The trial court granted the motion, and the court of appeals affirmed. Citing Gallups v. State, 151 S.W.3d 196 (Tex. Crim. App. 2004), and Swain v. State, 181 S.W.3d 359 (Tex. Crim. App. 2005), the court concluded that TEX. CODE CRIM. PROC. art. 14.03(a)(1) requires the State to prove exigent circumstances. In this case, the court opined, the State failed to prove that exigency justified dispensing with a warrant. Considering the merits of exigency, the court held: (1) McGuire was not in danger of subsequent intoxicated driving; (2) the possibility of his flight was ambiguous; (3) the police could have seized McGuire’s truck to avoid the destruction of evidence; and, (4) the need to expeditiously draw blood has been precluded by Missouri v. McNeely.

The State argues that Article 14.03(a)(1) does not have an exigency requirement.  It points out that neither the U.S. nor the Texas constitutions demand a warrant to conduct an arrest in public. Next, the State contends that contrary case law—Gallups and Swain—was erroneously developed. The State explains that Gallups and Swain relied on Judge Cochran’s concurring opinion in Dyar v. State, which in turn discussed Professor Reamey’s concern that Article 14.03(a)(1) could, in practice, result in a unfettered crime-scene warrant exception. 125 S.W.3d 460 (Tex. Crim. App. 2003) (Cochran, J., concurring); Gerald S. Reamey, Arrests in Texas’s “Suspicious Places”: A Rule in Search of Reason, 31 TEX. TECH L. REV. 931 (2000). Professor Reamey proposed that an exigency requirement be applied to Article 14.03(a)(1)’s requirement that an arrest be made in a “suspicious place.”  The State contends that Judge Cochran’s Dyar concurrence offered only a suggestion; it was not an accurate statement of law, particularly since there is no constitutional warrant requirement. When later cited in Gallups and Swain, the State argues, the Court erroneously restated dicta. Further, neither case announced a new exigency rule.

Next, even assuming that Article 14.03(a)(1) has an exigency requirement, the State contends the lower court missed a conclusive fact in the State’s favor. The integrity of any BAC evidence was more at risk in this context than in the warrantless search situation. Had McGuire been released, he could have ingested more alcohol or another faculty-altering substance. Finally, the accuracy of the BAC at the time the analysis is performed is important because Texas law allows for enhancement to a Class A misdemeanor for DWI if the defendant’s BAC was .15 at the time the analysis was performed. TEX. PENAL CODE § 49.04(d) (emphasis added).




“Can an officer
act In

by
relying on the
magistrate’s
approval of a
warrant that is
defective in
form?”

WHEELER, PD-0388-195



Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Can an officer act in objective good faith by relying on the magistrate’s approval of a warrant that is defective in form?”

Wheeler was arrested for driving while intoxicated.  The officer used an affidavit form to secure a warrant for a blood draw. He filled out the form and signed it but did not swear to it in front of anyone. A magistrate reviewed the application and signed it where the person to whom the officer should have sworn it would have signed it. Wheeler’s blood was drawn.

Wheeler moved to suppress the blood evidence. The officer testified that he did not know he needed to swear to the affidavit in front of anyone. The magistrate acknowledged that she should not have signed where she did but that affidavits from that agency are usually sworn to in front of another officer or notary.  The trial court denied Wheeler’s motion because the officer acted in good faith upon a warrant signed by a neutral magistrate and based on probable cause.

The court of appeals reversed. Wheeler did not challenge the neutrality or probable cause requirements set out in Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 38.23(b), and the court of appeals rejected any argument that a warrant had not issued. However, it held that the officer could not rely in good faith on the warrant because no objectively reasonable officer would believe that a sworn affidavit is not required.

The State argues that the court of appeals incorrectly focused on the reasonableness of the officer’s warrant preparation instead of his reliance on a judicially approved warrant. Numerous courts have held that reliance on a warrant with technical deficiencies is objectively reasonable. Once a warrant based on probable cause is issued by a neutral magistrate, it should not matter that the officer who executed the warrant was responsible for those technical deficiencies.


ARELLANO, PD-0287-19

1. Does Tex. Cobe CRIM. PROC. art.
38.23(b)’s “good faith” exception apply to
warrants without a magistrate’s name
printed or typed under the signhature?

2. Who has the burden to negate the
“good faith” exception?

3. Does Tex. Cobe CRIM. PrRoOC. art. 28.01 §
1(6) governing motion to suppress
hearings on motions to suppress allow a
trial court to ignore a mode of evidence it
made necessary?


Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Does Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Article 38.23(b), the ‘good faith’ exception, apply to warrants that do not have the magistrate’s name printed or typed under his signature?”

2. “In a motion to suppress evidence obtained with a warrant, does the defendant bear the burden of negating the ‘good faith’ exception?”

3. “Does Texas Code of Criminal Procedure Article 28.01, § 1(6), governing hearings on motions to suppress, allow a trial court to ignore a mode of evidence it made necessary?”

4. “The court of appeals should abate and remand to the trial court for findings and conclusions requested by the State.”


Arellano was arrested for driving while intoxicated. A search warrant issued for his blood. Arellano’s sole claim at the hearing on his motion to suppress was that the warrant was “facially invalid” because the magistrate’s signature did not “appear in clearly legible handwriting or in typewritten form with the magistrate’s signature.” See Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 18.04(5).  The State rested without putting on witnesses and argued that Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 38.23(b), the exclusionary exception for good-faith reliance on a warrant, excuses the signature-block problem. Arellano claimed that argument was premature without the officer’s testimony. The State countered that Arellano’s exhibit, which included the affidavit, showed probable cause and that there was no evidence the magistrate was not neutral. Arellano conceded that probable cause is ‘not the issue here’ and insisted that good-faith cannot be based on a warrant that fails Article 18.04’s requirements. The trial court requested briefing on that issue, to include “any relevant case law, anything else that you want to submit with regard to cases or argument with regard to that[,]” and then ended that discussion. The State’s brief included an affidavit from the officer and his offense report, both of which identify the magistrate.

The trial court granted Arellano’s motion. The State requested “essential findings,” including whether the trial court believed the officer and whether the identified magistrate was neutral and had issued the warrant based on probable cause. The trial court did not address these findings or conclusions. It held the good-faith exception inapplicable because the warrant was facially invalid. It added that the State offered no evidence at the hearing on the issue of the magistrate’s identity and that the officer’s post-hearing affidavit, had the trial court considered it, offered nothing relevant.

The court of appeals affirmed. It held the warrant was facially invalid and that Article 38.23(b) does not apply to facially invalid warrants. It thus deemed it unnecessary to consider the officer’s post-hearing affidavit but noted the trial court had discretion to decide the type of evidence it would consider, citing Ford v. State, 305 S.W.3d 530 (Tex. Crim. App. 2009). As a result, the court of appeals did not address the State’s argument that the trial court’s findings were inadequate or not supported by the record based on that affidavit. The State makes four arguments. First, a warrant that is apparently based on probable cause and signed by a neutral magistrate is facially valid for the purposes of Article 38.23(b); inapplicability based on a hyper-technical defect would render the exception a nullity. Second, Arellano, as the movant, had the burden to negate the good-faith exception by, e.g., challenging the neutrality of the magistrate or the presence of probable cause. Arellano ignored one and conceded the other. Third, if the State had the burden to prove good-faith reliance, it should not be punished for doing so through an affidavit after the trial court cut the live hearing short and requested briefing. Fourth, if the case is remanded in light of these legal questions, the trial court will have to issue the findings requested by the State before the appeal can be resolved.


TILGHMAN, PD-06/6-19

Can police lawfully enter
a to help a
hotel manager a

guest engaged in
criminal activity?


Presenter
Presentation Notes
“The Court of Appeals erred in holding that police could not lawfully enter a hotel room to help a hotel manager evict a guest engaged in criminal activity.”

Tilghman and his companions rented a hotel room. Hotel managers and employees smelled marijuana coming from their room and, based on hotel policy, decided to evict them for committing a crime. A manager knocked on the door but received no answer. Sometime later, a different manager enlisted the help of police to evict the men from the room. Alongside the manager, the officers knocked several times on the door.  When the officer knocked a third time and said “San Marcos Police,” he heard whispering inside. The manager unlocked the door and the officers went in. As they explained to Tilghman and the others that management wanted them out, they noticed marijuana and methamphetamine in plain view. Tilghman was arrested for possession of a controlled substance. He moved to suppress the drugs based on the officers’ warrantless entry into the room.  The trial court found that the officers had a right to enter the room at the invitation of the hotel to facilitate the eviction and overruled the motion.  Tilghman pleaded guilty and appealed the suppression ruling.

A majority of the court of appeals reversed. It held that the term of occupancy had not yet expired when police entered the room.  It held the State failed to prove that hotel policy allowed the hotel to evict guests without prior notice or that Tilghman was aware of this policy. The majority explained that eviction without prior notice would allow the unfettered discretion of a hotel employee to erode a hotel guest’s reasonable expectation of privacy, contrary to Stoner v. California, 376 U.S. 483 (1964).  It also noted that requiring prior notice to the guest would provide courts with evidence that occupants had lost a reasonable expectation of privacy before entry was made.  The dissent argued that officers were then effectuating the eviction and that Texas law required no prior notice.

The State argues that the majority has imposed new requirements on hoteliers to create eviction policies, inform residents about them, and provide notice prior to eviction.  It contends it is for the legislature (not courts) to impose such requirements, and that the majority’s standard creates confusion and forces hoteliers and law enforcement to either tolerate the situation until a warrant can be obtained or allow civilian managers to enter potentially dangerous situations unaided by police.  The State also argues that the majority’s decision expands Stoner from police-initiated hotel room searches to hotel-initiated evictions and conflicts with other state and federal cases recognizing that a lawful eviction terminates a hotel occupant’s expectation of privacy. 



Price, PD-0/722-19

Can accompanying
an arrestee into custody at
an airport be searched
incident to arrest?



Presenter
Presentation Notes
1.  “Does the ability to search a suitcase incident to a lawful arrest turn on the nature of the container?”

2. “Did the Fourth Court err in finding that the Texas Court of Criminal Appeals opinion in Lalande v. State, 676 S.W.2d 115 (Tex. Crim. App. 1984) could not be reconciled with this Court’s opinion in State v. Daugherty, 931 S.W.2d 268 (Tex. Crim. App. 1996)?”

After an informant notified police that Price would be flying into San Antonio with drugs, police set up surveillance with a drug dog. The drug dog gave a positive alert on Price’s suitcases. Police retrieved the suitcases and took Price to a secure location, where he was arrested and Mirandized. After invoking his right to remain silent, police searched the suitcases and found marijuana. Price filed a motion to suppress, alleging that the search was illegal. The trial court denied the motion.

On appeal, Price claimed that the search was unlawful in the absence of consent or a warrant. The court of appeals framed the issue as a search-incident-to-arrest dependent on whether the suitcases were “immediately associated” with Price when he was arrested. The court rejected that rationale and, in the process, drew a distinction between the suitcases and other items that are universally associated with an arrestee. Unlike a purse or wallet, luggage is not usually “immediately associated” with an arrestee.

Next, considering Court of Criminal Appeals’ precedent, the court concluded that under Lalande v. State, the search was lawful. Lalande stated that once it is “unequivocally clear” that an item will accompany a detainee in custody, the right to search “accrues immediately.” But, continuing, the lower court held that Lalande is inconsistent with State v. Daugherty, which rejected the inevitable discovery rule. So “the fact that the suitcases would have been inventoried when they accompanied Price to jail did not authorize their search at the airport office.”

The State contends that the court of appeals incorrectly focused on the type of bag instead of proximity. The State points out the court’s faulty logic: “if Price had been carrying a backpack or a shoulder bag, then the police could have performed a proper search incident to arrest, but since he had a suitcase, the search was improper.” The State argues that the suitcases were “immediately associated” with Price because his hands were on them at the time of his arrest.

The State also contends that the inevitable discovery rule is not implicated here. The rule hinges on the premise that the evidence was illegally obtained. However, here, under Lalande, the inventory search was justified at the outset; there was no illegality that would trigger inevitable discovery.
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Martin, PD-0563-19

Does a fireman’s tip that
ne saw evidence of guns
& drugs while fighting fire
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
“In Talent v. City of Abilene, 508 S.W.2d 592 (Tex. 1974), peace officers were distinguished from firefighters, who ‘(have) no roving commission to detect crime or to enforce the criminal law.’ Unlike fire marshals, who are peace officers, firefighters do not have general law-enforcement powers. Thus, absent an exigency that allows an officer to enter without a warrant, if a firefighter enters a home to extinguish fires or save lives and notices contraband even in plain view, that firefighter’s knowledge does not ‘impute’ to a peace officer, and the officer should Be prohibited from entering the home without a warrant.”

Firefighters saw drug paraphernalia, firearms, and ammunition inside Martin’s apartment while extinguishing a blaze. A firefighter concerned about his safety called police. When police arrived, a firefighter requested that the apartment be secured. An officer “froze” the apartment as a crime scene and entered to survey each room. He observed the paraphernalia and exited after he determined no one inside posed a safety risk. The officers then decided to get a search warrant. The search led to the discovery of methamphetamine.

Martin filed a motion to suppress, arguing that the exigent circumstances that authorized the firefighters’ entry did not apply to the police because the fire was out. The trial court denied the motion. It determined that the officers’ entry was lawful because the firefighters could have seized the paraphernalia. It reasoned that firefighters should be permitted to call police to secure the scene and to observe, in plain view, the same evidence that the firefighters were entitled to seize.��On appeal, Martin reiterated his trial court argument and added that, even though there was evidence about firearms, ammunition, and safety concerns, it was not realistic to conclude that a secondary exigency was afoot. The court affirmed the trial court’s ruling. It held that because the firefighters lawfully entered and observed contraband in plain view, the invasion of privacy was not increased by the police officer’s entry. Exigent circumstances continues for a reasonable time after a fire has been extinguished to allow fire officials to fulfill their duties, including making sure the fire will not rekindle, and investigating the cause of the fire. Further, when a firefighter’s role overlaps with that of a criminal investigator, “it is not unreasonable to allow officers ‘to step into the shoes of’ the firefighter to observe and to seize the contraband without first obtaining a warrant.”

Martin argues that exigency did not justify the entry to conduct a protective sweep. Martin had not been arrested, and no person inside posed a danger. He points to Talent v. City of Abilene, which determined that a fire chief is not a law enforcement officer; therefore, a firefighter’s knowledge of contraband could not be imputed to a police officer. Martin explains that fire marshals are peace officers but regular firefighters cannot perform their duties. Martin also argues that Michigan v. Clifford supports his position. 464 U.S. 287 (1984). “Clifford in fact shows that if arson investigators (who would be law enforcement or fire marshals in Texas) are unable to enter a home without a warrant if there are no exigent circumstances, then a regular firefighter cannot spot what appears to be contraband, tell a peace officer about it, and enable the peace officer to enter the home without a warrant.” Finally, he claims that the three circumstances that would justify the entry are not present. The officers did not provide aid, protect others from danger, or prevent the destruction of evidence.



Chambers, PD-0424-19

Is a defendant entitled to a
TeEX. CoDE CRIM. PROC. art.
38.23 jury charge instruction
when there is a factual

and a
conflict between his
testimony and the dashcam
video?



Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Is Appellant entitled to an instruction pursuant to Article 38.23 of the Code of Criminal Procedure when there is a factual dispute regarding the officer’s credibility and a conflict between his testimony and his dashcam video?”

An officer stopped Chambers for driving a truck with no rear license plate and discovered drugs. As it turned out, the vehicle had a license tag, albeit a paper one attached to the left side of the bumper. During Chambers’ trial for possession, the officer testified that the tag was not visible from his vantage point. Both the officer’s dash-cam recording and photos of the truck taken from inside a lighted garage were admitted in evidence. The State insisted the plate was not visible on the dash-cam video; the defense insisted that, at certain times on the video, it was. Chambers requested an Article 38.23 instruction in the jury charge, but this was denied and he was convicted.

On appeal, Chambers complained of the missing instruction. The court of appeals affirmed. It reasoned that neither the dash-cam video nor the photos created a factual dispute warranting an instruction because the tag was not visible on the dash-cam video due to a “high degree of glare” and the garage photos did not represent the circumstances under which the officer observed the truck. It also rejected as “mere speculation” Chambers’ argument that the jury could infer from the photos that the officer was lying when he testified he did not see the plate. The court pointed out that the officer consistently stated he did not see the plate and no witness testified it was visible at the time the officer initiated the traffic stop.

Chambers argues that the court of appeals rejected the 38.23 instruction because it found the officer to be credible, thus supplanting the jury’s role. He compares the issue over whether the officer actually saw the plate to that in Madden v. State, 242 S.W.3d 504 (Tex. Crim. App. 2007), where a statement on the officer’s video raised a factual dispute about whether Madden had been speeding. He contends it is an anomaly to permit a 38.23 instruction when two witnesses contradict each other on a material point but not when an officer’s testimony is affirmatively refuted by video and photographic evidence. Finally, he asks whether appellate judges should be resolving this issue based on their own opinion of what they see (or don’t see) on the video.    
�
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
1. “Under the Calloway [v. State, 743 S.W.2d 645 (Tex. Crim. App. 1988)] rule, is police coercion of a confession a ‘theory of law applicable to the case’ where the appellee argued that he lacked a ‘full understanding’ of his Miranda rights in a different statement?”

2. “In reviewing a trial court’s ruling on a motion to suppress, the reviewing court must give deference to the trial court’s resolution of the facts and review de novo the legal significance of those facts. May the court of appeals infer that a confession is involuntary as a matter of fact instead of applying the relevant legal test to the facts supported by the record?”

3. “In deferring to the trial court’s implied resolution of the facts, must the court of appeals ignore indisputable video evidence that the defendant affirmatively waived his Miranda rights?”

Castanedanieto was arrested for four robberies after midnight on August 10th. At 3:00 a.m., a detective interviewed him for twenty-two minutes. Castanedanieto was clearly on drugs and expressed some confusion over the Miranda warnings but cooperated and made inculpatory statements. Around dinner time on the 11th, Castanedanieto agreed to speak with another detective, who retrieved Castanedanieto from jail, bought him dinner, and brought him to the station. Castanedanieto was again given warnings and then confessed to the same crimes he confessed to the previous day and more. Both interviews were video recorded. The State sought to introduce the second. Castanedanieto objected, claiming his first confession was involuntary because he lacked a full understanding of his rights and that his understanding did not improve in the hours leading to the second interview, repeated warnings notwithstanding. The trial court suppressed the statements without entering findings or conclusions.

The court of appeals affirmed. It decided the issue, not on the ground raised by Castanedanieto, but on “a potential basis” for the suppression it deemed applicable to the case: the “cat-out-of-the-bag” theory. See United States v. Bayer, 331 U.S. 532, 540-41 (1947). The court acknowledged the factors set forth in Sterling v. State, 800 S.W.2d 513 (Tex. Crim. App. 1990), for evaluating the taint of a prior confession but felt obligated to defer to the trial court’s implicit assessments in the absence of “indisputable video evidence” of Castanedanieto’s voluntariness to speak. Re-weighing the Sterling factors, the majority said, was “not our job here.” Instead, it credited determinations the trial court could have made that the detective’s “declarative statements” made the second confession coerced. Justice Bridges dissented. He would have applied the Sterling factors to the indisputable facts available to the court, especially the videos, and determined that Castanedanieto’s second confession was not tainted by the first.

The State raises multiple issues related to the scope of review of suppression rulings. First, it asks whether the standard of appellate review includes consideration of a “coercion” argument when what was raised at trial was a lack of awareness. It argues that the Calloway rule, which permits affirmation on any applicable theory of law, gives way in this case to the exception for arguments on which the State was “never fairly called upon” to carry its burden. See State v. Esparza, 413 S.W.3d 81, 90 (Tex. Crim. App. 2013). Second, the State asks whether a deferential standard of review includes declining to apply, in any meaningful way, a test designed to determine a legal issue. If so, the State argues, it effectively has no right to appeal a suppression ruling of this kind. Third, the State asks what discretion a reviewing court has to disregard undisputed video evidence in the name of deference. This is especially important in this case, as many of the Sterling factors do not turn on credibility determinations and are answered by the video, e.g., whether warnings were given or counsel requested.




MATA, PD-0810-19

“Do questions that
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Do questions that would objectively aid a search for a kidnapped or missing person fall within New York v. Quarles’s public safety exception to Miranda?”
After kidnapping a child, Mata’s location was pinpointed from his cell phone.  Mata was stopped in his vehicle and the officers, without Mirandizing him, asked him about the child’s location.  Mata offered to trade her location in exchange for his release.  Although the officers rejected his proposal, Mata led them to the victim, and she was rescued.  The trial court suppressed Mata’s statements, ostensibly due to the Miranda violation.

The State appealed, arguing that the “public safety” exception recognized in New York v. Quarles, 467 U.S. 649 (1984), applied.  The court of appeals disagreed, concluding that Quarels is distinguishable.   Quarles, it observed, involved an officer asking a suspect about the location of a hidden gun in a store because it could pose a danger to the officers and public.  Thus, the court held, “Because the exception is a narrow one, and it has only been used in situations involving the use of guns, we decline to create an exception here that may lessen the clarity of the Miranda rule.”

The State argues that the lower court’s reading of Quarles is too narrow.  Quarles did not create a weapons-only exception; what mattered was that the officer’s questions were prompted by a concern for public safety.  Quarles recognized that while lost confessions may be an acceptable risk of Miranda warnings, lost opportunities to neutralize a threat to public safety are not.   Additionally, applying Miranda when there is no evidence of a weapon but still a physical threat to a person, particularly a kidnapped child, puts officers in the position the Supreme Court was trying to avoid—having officers weigh the prospect of an answer that could save the life of a child against the prospect of damaging the criminal prosecution.  Finally, there is a greater exigency here than in Quarles; a kidnapped child could be anywhere, and the magnitude of harm to a child is greater than the more hypothetical public concern in Quarles.
�
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Eighth Court erred in upholding the trial court’s ruling that the second, in-car session of Lujan’s interview was not a continuation of the first, interview-room session, because: (1) under the Bible factors, the second-session interview was a continuation of the first; and (2) requiring police to re-Mirandize a suspect if the police engage in ambiguous conduct that could be construed as terminating, or setting a temporal limitation on, the interrogation (and attendant Miranda rights) undermines the ease and clarity of Miranda’s application by requiring officers to continually second-guess whether they made any such potentially ambiguous statements.

Lujan was arrested in connection with a murder committed during a larger crime spree. She was taken to an interview room at police headquarters that was “rigged” for audio- and video-recording, and Det. Ochoa Mirandized her. She denied involvement in the murder but admitted being present when the body was disposed of.  She repeatedly asked to take Det. Ochoa and Det. Camacho to where the body was buried, and they agreed.  Before leaving the room, Det. Ochoa said “And when we come back, we can continue, if you like, okay?”

Six minutes later (and 19 minutes after first being Mirandized), Det. Camacho and Ochoa resumed questioning Lujan in a police vehicle, as she gave directions to find the body.  Believing this to be a continuation of the prior interview, the detectives did not re-Mirandize her, but they did audio-record it on a police-department iPad that Det. Camacho placed between himself and Lujan. Lujan was not told the iPad was recording. During the 3-hour-long car ride, she made incriminating statements about a related kidnapping and other offenses. She took police to the general area where the body was buried, but when they could not find the exact burial spot, they returned to headquarters.

About two hours later, the detectives began the third and final session in an interview room, explaining to Lujan, “this is a continuation of our interview that we had taken before.” This time, she was re-Mirandized and she repeated much of what she said during the second recording.

Lujan argued in her motion to suppress that the session in the car should be suppressed under Miranda and Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 38.22 because she was not given the relevant warnings at the beginning of that interview. The State argued that the sessions were part of a single interview that happened to take place in two locations and that the original Miranda warnings were still effective. In suppressing the second statement, the trial court found that Det. Ochoa’s statement that they could continue “when we come back” was calculated to make Lujan believe that any statement she made en route to find the body would not be used against her.

 The State appealed the pre-trial suppression ruling. The court of appeals affirmed the trial court’s suppression of the second statement as not being a continuation of the first. Under the factors of Bible v. State, 162 S.W.3d 234 (Tex. Crim. App. 2005), it held that while the length of time between the statements weighed heavily in favor of finding one continuous interview, the failure to remind Lujan of the earlier warnings weighed heavily against it, and the remaining two factors, including whether the interrogation was conducted by different officers and discussed different offenses, were neutral.  It found two additional circumstances supported the trial court’s ruling—(1) the interviews were conducted in different locations, and (2) Det. Ochoa told Lujan that the interview could continue when they returned, which the court of appeals found cut “sharpest” against the State’s position.  

The State argues that the six-minute pause between the first interview and the in-car interview was so short as to not be meaningful. It contends the court of appeals should have placed little weight on the lack of a reminder, as no defendant would have forgotten the warnings under those circumstances. The State also takes issue with the two Bible factors the court of appeals found neutral because the interrogation was, in fact, conducted by the same two officers and most of the different offenses discussed in the second interview were related to the crime spree or were part of Lujan’s explanation of how she knew those involved. The setting was different for the two sessions only because the detectives were accommodating Lujan’s request to take them to the body. Finally, the State argues that Det. Ochoa’s statement about continuing when they returned would not have clearly conveyed to all involved that the interrogation was over or that what was said in the interim would not be used against her. The State points out that Lujan never testified as to how she understood the detective’s off-hand statement and that it is vague and ambiguous. A clear and unambiguous termination of the interview is required given the policy of Supreme Court Miranda jurisprudence to avoid rules requiring police to make difficult judgment calls about Miranda’s application. The court of appeals’ ruling undermines this policy and “unduly hampers law-enforcement’s legitimate efforts to obtain admissions of guilt.”        
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Whether statements made by police detectives during their interrogation of the Appellant constituted a threat to arrest and charge his wife with capital murder if, and only if, he did not confess to it himself.”

2. “Whether police detectives had probable cause to arrest Appellant’s wife for capital murder.”

3. “Whether the existence of probable cause to arrest Appellant’s wife for capital murder, if it existed, was sufficient to excuse threats to arrest and charge her with capital murder if Appellant did not confess to it himself.”

4. “Whether truthful statements made to Appellant by police detectives during their interrogation of him were sufficient to excuse threats to arrest and charge his wife with capital murder if he did not confess to it himself.”

5. “Whether Appellant’s involuntary confession to police detectives was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt.”

A foster child under Lopez’s care died as a result of blunt force injuries to her chest and abdomen. The level of applied force required an adult, and Lopez and his wife were the only adults home at the time. Police suspected Lopez, who admitted to watching the child that day but denied any wrongdoing. During separate non-custodial interviews, detectives told Lopez and his wife that if Lopez did not admit responsibility both he and his wife could be arrested, resulting in CPS removing their children. Lopez gave a detailed confession the next day. He moved to suppress his statements as involuntary, but the trial court concluded the detectives did not threaten or coerce him.

The court of appeals affirmed. It held that a confession is voluntary even if police “threaten” a family member so long as the statements accurately reflect the potential consequences they face and are based on probable cause. Of all the relevant communications to Lopez and his wife, the court of appeals found two were arguably threats. However, the detectives had probable cause that one or both were responsible, and the removal of their children was a foreseeable consequence. Alternatively, the court held that any error in the admission of the confession was harmless because a separate confession was admitted without objection.

Lopez argues that, despite federal precedent that might support the holding, the Court of Criminal Appeals has not yet embraced it. He says, “Threatening to throw a man’s wife in jail if he does not confess to a crime is ipso facto just the kind of thing that is likely to overbear his will.” Regarding harm, Lopez says it is not clear the court of appeals used the standard for constitutional errors and says it would have been irrational to find the error harmless beyond a reasonable doubt. His argument is based, in part, on the fact that the same evidence was presented in a previous trial that ended in a mistrial with nine jurors favoring acquittal.
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“Should murder
always be
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potential result
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Is the Fifth Court of Appeals right, or are the First and Second Courts of Appeals right? Should murder always be anticipated as a potential result of robbery?”

George and Rodney Range entered the decedent’s hotel room to rob him after two prostitutes George knew said the decedent had a large amount of cash. According to one prostitute, the decedent charged the robbers as they entered and Range put a choke hold on and fought with him. Range eventually restrained the decedent on the bed with zip ties on his hands and feet. The prostitute claimed George stood there and tried to calm her down because she was freaking out. Prior to trial, however, she told police George was the aggressor in the fight and got the decedent under control before Range applied a choke hold. The decedent was left face down on a pillow on the bed, where he was found dead by housekeeping. The medical examiner said he died as a result of homicidal violence including asphyxia and blunt-force injuries.

George was tried for capital murder in the course of committing and attempting to commit robbery. The jury was instructed on liability as a principal and party, and on the lesser-included offenses of murder and manslaughter. He was denied an instruction on robbery. George was convicted of capital murder and sentenced to life without parole.

George appealed on both the sufficiency of the evidence and the denial of a robbery instruction. The court of appeals held that there was sufficient evidence to convict George under any theory of principal or party liability. “Even if appellant did not actually kill decedent, he should have anticipated that Range might react violently when confronted by decedent after barging into the hotel room.” See Tex. Penal Code § 7.02(b). The court also rejected his “lesser” claim because there was no affirmative evidence that (1) there was no murder; (2) the murder was not committed in furtherance of a conspiracy; or (3) the murder should not have been anticipated. “To the contrary, when one decides to steal property from another, he should anticipate he or his co-conspirator might be confronted by that individual and that his co-conspirator might react violently to that confrontation.”

George challenges the denial of the robbery instruction. He attributes it to the above statement, which he says is errant. Viewed properly, the evidence that he just stood there while Range killed the decedent and that the prostitute said the intent was just to get money, combined with the absence of weapons or a stated intent to kill, entitled him to the instruction. George claims he was harmed despite the submission of two lesser-included offenses because neither homicide offense gave the jury a vehicle for not finding causation or anticipation of death. See Saunders v. State, 913 S.W.2d 564, 574 (Tex. Crim. App. 1995) (“Failure to convict of on
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and wrestled over the gun of his own volition, is
he nonetheless entitled to a

if testimony shows that another
person’s conduct precipitated the gun’s
discharge?”


Presenter
Presentation Notes
1. “Does a trial court’s sua sponte submission of an issue in the jury charge prevent a court of appeals from considering whether the evidence raised such an issue?”

2.  “If, under a defensive view of the evidence, the defendant in a murder case drew, pointed, and wrestled over the gun of his own volition, is he nonetheless entitled to a voluntary-act instruction if testimony shows that another person’s conduct precipitated the gun’s discharge?”

3. “Alternatively, should a voluntary-act instruction resemble the instruction in Simpkins v. State, 590 S.W.2d 129 (Tex. Crim. App. [Panel Op.] 1979), and specify the facts that would render the defendant’s conduct involuntary or inform the jury that voluntariness is distinct from the culpable mental state?”

4.  “Alternatively, does an instruction result in some harm to the defense if it lacks this specificity and is missing from lesser-included-offense instructions never reached by the jury?”

According to Hervey, he was being shorted in a marijuana deal when he pointed a loaded gun at the dealer’s neck and told him to get out of his car. The dealer grabbed the gun, and the two struggled over it. Hervey testified that, during the scuffle, his finger slipped inside the trigger guard and the gun “went off.” The dealer was shot a single time and died. Hervey was indicted for murder.

In its charge, the judge instructed the jury on the voluntary-act requirement by tracking Penal Code § 6.01(a). The judge rejected Hervey’s requests for a voluntary-act instruction that:

(1) required an acquittal if the jury believed the shooting was the result of an accidental discharge during a struggle over the gun (consistent with Simpkins),

(2) informed the jury that voluntariness is separate from culpable mental state, and 

(3) applied to the lesser-included offenses of manslaughter and criminally negligent homicide

The jury convicted Hervey of murder.

On appeal, the court of appeals agreed with Hervey that these three missing instructions were required and remanded for a new trial.

The State argues that Hervey was not entitled to a voluntary-act instruction in the first place and that the court of appeals erred in assuming it could not address entitlement. It contends that the voluntary-act requirement requires only that the defendant’s conduct include a voluntary act—not that every act up until the moment a gun is discharged must be voluntary. It contends that Hervey’s admission to drawing, pointing, and struggling over the loaded gun was enough. It argues there was even less evidence raising the issue as to the lessers. Alternatively, the State argues the instructions Hervey requested are improper comments on the weight of the evidence and that failure to include the instructions could not have harmed him. 
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
“When a defendant is charged with ‘assault by occlusion’ pursuant to Tex. Penal Code § 22.01(b)(2)(B), does the denial of occlusion and admission to causing different injuries entitle him to an instruction on simple assault?”

Ortiz was charged with assault under Tex. Penal Code § 22.01(b)(2)(B), which makes intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly causing bodily injury a third-degree felony if the defendant and victim have a family or dating relationship and “the offense is committed by intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly impeding the normal breathing or circulation of the blood of the person by applying pressure to the person’s throat or neck or by blocking the person’s nose or mouth.” He admitted causing various injuries during an assaultive episode with the victim but denied impeding her breathing or circulation. Ortiz’s request for an instruction on family violence assault was denied, and he was convicted as charged.

The court of appeals reversed. It held that “assault by occlusion” is an assault with two additional requirements—relationship and occlusion. “Accordingly, simple assault is a lesser included offense because it is included within the proof necessary to establish assault family violence by strangulation.” See Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 37.09(1) (“An offense is a lesser included offense if . . . it is established by proof of the same or less than all the facts required to establish the commission of the offense charged[.]”).

The State argues that Section 22.01(b)(2)(B) is a statutory manner and means that, once pled, cannot be avoided by either party. It relies on Price v. State, 457 S.W.3d 437 (Tex. Crim. App. 2015), and Marshall v. State, 479 S.W.3d 840 (Tex. Crim. App. 2016), both of which say that impeding breathing or circulation is the required bodily injury in these cases. Even if it is not, the State’s case from indictment to argument was about a specific, statutorily defined injury and Ortiz had no right to make the case about some other assaultive conduct.
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assault or are they part of a single
assault?”
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Presentation Notes
1. “Did the court of appeals err in holding that misdemeanor assault by striking in the face was not a lesser-included offense of family violence assault by impeding breath or circulation?”

2. “Do multiple physical injuries inflicted in a single attack constitute separately actionable crimes of assault or are they part of a single assault?”

3. “Should Irving v. State, 176 S.W.3d 842 (Tex. Crim. App. 2005), be overruled in light of other developments in our caselaw?”

Barrett was convicted of assault by impeding breath or circulation under Tex. Penal Code § 22.01(b)(2)(B), a third-degree felony. Both the victim and a witness told officers that Barrett choked the victim. At trial, however, the victim testified that he punched her and that she made the choking allegation up. Barrett requested but was denied an instruction on Class A assault for punching her. He was convicted as charged.

The court of appeals affirmed. It held that striking the victim’s face is “not established by proof of the same or less than all of the facts required to establish assault by impeding the normal breathing or circulation of the blood of the person by applying pressure to the person’s throat or neck or by blocking the person’s nose or mouth,” as required by section 22.01(b)(2)(B). See Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 37.09(1). It relied upon Irving v. State for the proposition that the requested lesser must be within the facts of the conduct charged, including the factual allegations.

The Court of Criminal Appeals refused Barrett’s pro se petition but granted review on its own motion. Beyond the “unit of prosecution” issue raised by the second ground, the Court appears to be concerned with the effect that the evolution of variance law might play in the analysis. As it stands, the State is frequently permitted to retain a conviction despite proving a different manner of assault than was alleged. These issues were recently addressed in Hernandez v. State, 556 S.W.3d 308 (Tex. Crim. App. 2017), both on original submission and rehearing. The extent to which this rubric applies to lesser-included offenses is an open question.
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
“Whether a defendant’s failure to admit the exact manner and means of an assault as set forth in a charging instrument is a sufficient basis to deny a jury charge on self-defense.”

Ebikam was charged with assaulting Ebo, a woman he was dating, by striking her with his hand. Their conflict arose when Ebo called Ebikam and another woman answered his phone. Ebo went to Ebikam’s apartment. According to Ebo, Ebikam hit her several times. According to Ebikam, Ebo was pushing her way into his apartment and he was scared of what she was going to do to him and the woman inside. He admitted that he attempted to close the door on Ebo to prevent her from coming in. He denied striking or hitting her. At the charge conference, Ebikam asked for a self-defense instruction. The trial court denied it, and Ebikam was convicted.  

On appeal, Ebikam argued it was error to deny his self-defense instruction. The court of appeals affirmed and held that, to warrant a charge on self-defense, Ebikam had to admit to striking Ebo with his hand as alleged in the information.

Ebikam argues that as long as there is some evidence on each element of the defense, a defendant is not required either to concede to the State’s version of events or admit to every element as alleged in the charging instrument. He contends he sufficiently admitted to the assaultive conduct and that the court of appeals’s strict requirement that he admit to the manner and means conflicts with other self-defense cases in the courts of appeals and Court of Criminal Appeals.     
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Presentation Notes
1.  “The Court of Appeals erred when it held that prior possession and use of contraband may be admitted to prove knowledge of contraband and intent to possess contraband under Rules 403 and 404(b) of the Texas Rules of Evidence.”

2.   “The Court of Appeals erred when it held that prior possession and use of contraband may be admitted under Rules 403 and 404(b) of the Texas Rules of Evidence to rebut the defensive theory that the defendant lacked knowledge of the presence of contraband.”

3.   “The Court of Appeals erred when it held that prior possession and use of contraband may be admitted under Rules 403 and 404(b) of the Texas Rules of Evidence to prove the identity of the person who possessed the contraband.”

4.   “The Court of Appeals erred when it held that prior possession and use of contraband may be admitted under the doctrine of chances.”

Work was pulled over for speeding. During a consensual search, police found marijuana and methamphetamine in a cup of coffee in the center console area. Work admitted to having a marijuana pipe in the truck, but both he and his passenger denied possessing what was in the coffee cup. The passenger said that she had found the marijuana and methamphetamine (after getting the truck back from someone they’d lent it to) and had put it in the cup to throw way. She said Work was unaware the drugs were in the vehicle. Work made other statements to the officer about his criminal history and drug use. These statements were recorded and later offered in Work’s trial for possession of methamphetamine. The trial court excluded part of the statements under Rule 404(b) and 403 but admitted others, including that he had been previously arrested for drugs, had a prior felony drug conviction, and had used marijuana earlier that day and meth several months earlier. It admitted the evidence to show Work’s knowledge, intent, identity, and to rebut a defensive theory that the passenger was in sole possession of the contraband. The jury convicted.

On appeal, Work challenged the trial court’s decision to admit the extraneous offense evidence on the recording. Much of the same evidence was admitted without objection during the officers’ testimony, but the court of appeals assumed, without deciding, that Work had not forfeited his complaint. Citing Work’s argument in opening statement that he didn’t know there was methamphetamine in the vehicle, the court of appeals held that Work’s prior conviction and drug use were circumstantial evidence that his possession on this occasion was intentional or knowing. It cited other courts of appeals cases, one of which held that a prior drug offense reduces the possibility that the defendant’s act of possession on the occasion in question was done with innocent intent. The court of appeals also held that the trial judge could have reasonably found the Rule 403 factors weighed in favor of admission.  

Work argues that the extraneous offense evidence does not refute his claim that he was unaware of the drugs in the coffee cup and that it is nothing more than propensity evidence. He contends that, in the federal courts of appeals, a defendant’s prior possession or use is not admissible unless the defendant claims he was unfamiliar with the contraband. In absence of such a claim, the defendant’s knowledge is not at issue. He argues that the evidence could not have been admitted under an identity theory to prove he was the one who possessed the contraband because this ignores the concept of joint possession. He also contends that the circumstances are not so unusual as to be evidence of the defendant’s “handiwork” or “signature” or to be admissible under the doctrine of chances.
�
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Presentation Notes
1.  “Whether permitting a key prosecution witness to testify remotely by videoconference from Montana violated the Confrontation Clause of the Sixth Amendment (3 R.R. 158-68; 4 R.R. 52-56).”

2.  “Whether the court of appeals erroneously ignored well-established Supreme Court precedent when it conducted the harm analysis of the Confrontation Clause violation.”

At Haggard’s child-sex-abuse trial, the trial court overruled his Confrontation Clause objections and allowed the Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) to testify via videoconference. The SANE testified about the victim’s report of the incident, the findings of her exam, and part of the chain of custody for the DNA evidence.

On appeal, Haggard challenged the trial court’s ruling. The court of appeals assumed that Haggard’s confrontation rights were violated and then held that the complained-of error was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt because it was cumulative of other evidence and Haggard’s conviction could have rested on the victim’s testimony alone.
�Haggard argues that the Court of Criminal Appeals should address the merits of his confrontation claim because the trial court’s ruling is inconsistent with Supreme Court precedent and that of other states. He points out that, unlike crime victims, the State had no interest in protecting the SANE. Further, the trial court erred to excuse her presence under the rationale that she was an expert, as opposed to a “fact witness.” Haggard recognizes he cross-examined her, but focuses on her physical absence because he, the jury, and the SANE could not see each other simultaneously, and the jury could not fully assess her demeanor.

Haggard also complains about the lower court’s harm analysis. He states that the SANE’s testimony was not merely cumulative. She was the only disinterested, non-family-member witness to corroborate the victim’s account of the incident. Haggard also contends that when in-person confrontation is at issue, Coy v. Iowa, 487 U.S. 1012 (1990), mandates a special harm rule requires a reviewing court to exclude the witness’ testimony from the analysis. Because the SANE was also a DNA chain-of-custody witness, the results would have been excluded. Without the DNA evidence, the State’s case would have pivoted on the victim’s tenuous account.
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“Is a prior conviction for
family violence under
TEX. PENAL CODE
§ 22.01(b)(2)(A) always
a guilt issue simply
because it can be, and
often is, used as a
jurisdictional element?”
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Presentation Notes
“Is a prior conviction for family violence under Tex. Penal Code § 22.01(b)(2)(A) always a guilt issue simply because it can be, and often is, used as a jurisdictional element?”

Holoman was indicted for felony assault by impeding a household member’s breath or circulation. Assaulting a household member can also be a felony if the defendant has a prior family-violence conviction, which Holoman had. Rather than charging Holoman with this alternate felony, the State set out the prior in an enhancement notice. In the jury charge, the trial court submitted misdemeanor assault (plus the victim’s status as a family/household member) as a lesser-included offense, and the jury convicted on this lesser.  Then for the first time at punishment, the State offered the family-violence prior, which the judge found true, returning the punishment range to a third-degree felony. Holoman was then sentenced as a habitual offender on proof of two other prior sequential felonies.

On appeal, Holoman argued that the family-violence prior was an element of third-degree felony assault that had to be proven at the guilt phase. The court of appeals agreed and held that the jury had only convicted Holoman of misdemeanor assault and thus his 25-year prison sentence was illegal.

The State contends that the prior is ordinarily a guilt issue when the State charges recidivist family-violence assault. Tex. Code of Crim. Proc. Article 36.01 authorizes treating prior offenses as elements of the offense unless they are “alleged for enhancement only” and are “not jurisdictional.” Here, the prior met both these conditions because the assault by impeding was what vested jurisdiction in the district court.  The State contends that, contrary to the court of appeals’s holding, a prior offense does not immutably belong to one phase of trial or the other. Instead, as Article 36.01 indicates, it should depend on how it is used in the case.
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Presentation Notes
“Is the failure to admonish about immigration consequences under Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 26.13(a)(4) harmful when the defendant was already deportable at the time of his guilty plea due to prior convictions?”

2. “Is the failure to admonish about immigration consequences under Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 26.13(a)(4) harmful when the defendant knew he was already deportable at the time of his guilty plea due to prior convictions?”

3. “Was the failure to admonish about immigration consequences under Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 26.13(a)(4) harmful when Appellant was already deportable, the evidence of guilt was overwhelming, and he was morally motivated to plead guilty?”

Loch, a citizen of Cambodia, was not admonished according to Tex. Code Crim. Proc. art. 26.13(a)(4) about possible deportation consequences when he pleaded guilty to murder. During the proceedings, he stipulated to having six prior convictions.

On appeal, Appellant complained about the failure to admonish under Article 26.13(a)(4). The court of appeals held it was reversible error. It concluded that, even though evidence of guilt is overwhelming, there is no evidence that he was aware of deportation consequences at the time of his plea.

The State contends the court of appeals erred to find harm because immigration consequences were immaterial to his plea. Most of Loch’s prior convictions made him deportable before he entered his plea. Indeed, documents showed that Loch had an ICE detainer placed on him when previously imprisoned in Florida.  Because he had no lawful right to be in the U.S., he cannot show his guilty plea might lead to deportation.  And, even if Loch subjectively believed he was not already deportable, he still did not suffer harm. A non-citizen defendant’s false belief about immigration status does not implicate a “substantial right” as required by Rule 44.2(b).  If it could have had no impact on his decision then, in hindsight for purposes of a harm assessment, it cannot rationally be said that it would have had an impact. Finally, harm cannot be shown because the evidence is overwhelming, Loch was motived by a sense of duty and religion to plead, and he was already deportable, his plea would have been the same had he been properly admonished.
�
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Presentation Notes
“While reviewing a violation of the Michael Morton Act, the Court of Appeals erred in its materiality analysis.”

At the punishment phase of trial, the State offered multiple pen packets and booking sheets to prove its enhancement allegations as well as extraneous offenses. Watkins objected that the State had not disclosed the exhibits in discovery, and the State, believing that it was not required to, agreed it had not. The trial court admitted the exhibits.

On appeal, Watkins argued that the admission of the exhibits violated Code of Criminal Procedure Article 39.14, which states in part that the State must disclose various items that “constitute or contain evidence material to any matter involved in the action.” The court of appeals ultimately found the exhibits were not material. It acknowledged that if it were “writing on a clean slate,” it would be inclined to include punishment phase trial exhibits within the meaning of “material to any matter involved in the action.” But it felt compelled to follow Court of Criminal Appeals precedent construing materiality under Article 39.14 to be the same as for a Brady v. Maryland claim, i.e., that there be “a reasonable probability that had the evidence been disclosed, the outcome of the trial would have been different.” Although the precedent pre-dated the Morton Act amendments to Art. 39.14, the amendments did not change the text of that phrase. Applying the controlling standard, the court of appeals observed that Watkins had pleaded true to the enhancement paragraphs and had notice that the State intended to prove the other extraneous convictions through the State’s Article 37.07 notice. The court concluded that even if the exhibits had been produced, there was no reasonable probability that the outcome of the punishment hearing would have been different.  

Watkins argues the court of appeals applied the wrong standard for materiality. He contends that the Morton Act’s significant alterations to the discovery statute made the pre-Morton materiality standard inapplicable. Before the Morton Act eliminated it, defendants were required to show good cause. As a result, cases frequently stated that discovery violations were reversible error only if the omitted evidence created a reasonable doubt that did not otherwise exist. Watkins contends that the similarity between this standard and Brady materiality resulted in the two being “inextricably    intertwined.” Watkins also argues that the Morton Act’s intent to broaden discovery cannot be accomplished without retreating from the prior understanding of materiality. Many of the items that the Morton Act added to what the State must disclose do not fit the old definition of materiality, and yet their addition is an express intent that they be turned over. Watkins also argues that because Brady and the Morton Act are not similar in scope, they should not employ the same definition of materiality. He adds that the court of appeals was not constrained to follow the Court of Criminal Appeals decision since the Legislature has since amended the statute through the Morton Act. He contends the court of appeals should have adopted a construction of the statute that effectuated the Legislature’s intended changes.
�
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
“What is the unit of prosecution for failure to appear, Tex. Penal Code § 38.10?”

Kuykendall was on deferred adjudication probation on two counts charged in a single indictment.  The trial court set the hearing on the State’s motion to adjudicate and revoke both counts for a single hearing.  Kuykendall failed to appear. He pled guilty to two counts of failure to appear, and the trial court sentenced him to ten years’ confinement on each count.

Kuykendall argued on appeal that two convictions violated the multiple-punishments prong of the Double Jeopardy Clause because the allowable unit of prosecution is each failure to appear.  The court of appeals agreed: because he failed to appear for only one court date, the State was entitled to only one conviction.

The State argues that the gravamen of the offense is the failure to appear “in accordance with the terms of his release.” Failing to appear on multiple counts constitutes multiple violations because each count included a bond conditioned on the promise to appear.  Any other construction would mean the unit of prosecution is dictated by scheduling decisions.
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Presentation Notes
“The Thirteenth Court of Appeals erred in concluding that the officer who stopped Hardin’s vehicle lacked reasonable suspicion to stop her for failing to maintain a single lane by swerving into another lane, whether or not this movement could be done safely.”

At a pretrial suppression hearing, a police officer testified that he stopped Hardin’s vehicle for failing to maintain a single lane in violation of Tex. Transp. Code § 545.060(a).  Section 545.060(a) states: “an operator on a roadway divided into two or more clearly marked lanes for traffic: (1) shall drive as nearly as practical entirely within a single lane; and (2) may not move from the lane unless that movement can be made safely.”  The trial court granted Hardin’s motion, concluding that even though Hardin crossed over the center line without signaling a lane change, it was not unsafe because no other vehicles were around. 

The court of appeals affirmed. It agreed with the trial court’s legal conclusion that Section 545.060(a) requires proof that the failure to maintain a single lane was also unsafe.

The State argues that the Court should adopt the plurality decision in Leming v. State. 493 S.W.3d 552 (Tex. Crim. App. 2016).  There, a plurality stated that Section 545.060(a) requires a person to “drive as nearly as practical entirely within a single lane,” whether or not movement between lanes may be made safely.  The State explains that (a)(1) should apply generally, without a safe-movement exception, to all driving within a lane that does not involve changing or entirely leaving the lane, and (a)(2)’s safety exception should apply only to lane changes or the act of leaving the lane entirely.  If both subsections apply, the State cautions, then a driver may never move from a lane unless (1) it is impractical to stay in the lane for some reason and (2) movement from the lane can be made safely.  The State contends that it makes no sense to require driving in a lane to rise to the level of impracticability as a prerequisite to changing a lanes. Further, a contrary reading of the statute would undermine the purpose of the law. A driver would be authorized to swerve between lanes as long as the driver “first ascertained that such a movement can be made safely.” And painted lanes, which are traffic signals, would become suggestive instead of mandatory.
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Presentation Notes
1.  “Whether the plain language of the evading-arrest statute requires proof of knowledge that the attempted arrest or detention is lawful.”

2.  “Whether it matters in this case; whether the evidence is legally insufficient to show that Nicholson knew he was being lawfully detained.”

Nicholson sat parked in a convenience store lot for several hours. Officer Layfield approached to verify that he was okay. Thereafter, the officer discovered Nicholson had an outstanding warrant, saw him litter, and began handcuffing him. Layfield did not convey to Nicholson why he was being detained. Nicholson pulled away from Layfield and drove off in his truck. He was convicted of evading arrest or detention, which prohibits “intentionally flee[ing] from a person [the defendant] knows is a peace officer. . . attempting lawfully to arrest or detain him.” Tex. Penal Code § 38.04.

On appeal, Nicholson argued the evidence was legally insufficient because the State failed to prove he knew that Layfield was lawfully detaining him. The majority opinion in the court of appeals sidestepped the issue and held that, even if it didn’t have to, the State proved Nicholson knew Layfield’s detention was lawful because he was being detained for at least four crimes—littering, failure to I.D., outstanding warrants, and paraphernalia possession. Chief Justice Gray dissented. He concluded the statute requires a defendant to know his detention was lawful and that there was insufficient evidence to prove he did.

Nicholson argues that the plain language of § 38.04 supports his interpretation. He notes several adverse courts of appeals’ holdings but argues they erroneously rely on Hazkell v. State, 616 S.W.2d 204 (Tex. Crim. App. 1981), which pre-dates the amendment adding “lawfully” to the statute. He observes that knowledge modifies the other terms surrounding “lawfully” and it is not set off by any punctuation, signaling that “knows” also modifies “lawfully.” He also challenges the majority’s sufficiency analysis. He notes that suspicion of paraphernalia possession did not arise until after his arrest and argues Nicholson would have no reason to infer he was being arrested or detained for the other offenses since the officer never articulated a basis for the detention.  
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“Is reformation unauthorized unless the State pled all the elements and statutorily required notice allegations of the lesser-included offense?”

Lang’s conviction for organized retail theft, Tex. Penal Code § 31.16(b), was reversed by the Court of Criminal Appeals with instructions to consider whether it could be reformed to a theft Lang conceded she committed. Lang v. State, 561 S.W.3d 174, 184 (Tex. Crim. App. 2018).  The court of appeals said “no.” Although one cannot commit organized retail theft without acquiring or otherwise exercising control over property with the intent to deprive the owner of property—the elements of theft—it held theft is not a lesser in this case because the indictment failed to allege the owner’s name or information from which it could be deduced.

The State’s petition raises related points. First, owner identity is a statutory pleading requirement, not an element of theft. It need not be pled unless the defendant complains.  Second, the State is not required to allege all the substantive elements of an offense that is subsumed by the charged offense, even if the defendant complains.  Why, then, would the test for lesser-included offenses set out in Hall v. State, 225 S.W.3d 524 (Tex. Crim. App. 2007), require that the charging instrument include such information? Is it because the owner and description of property, neither of which are elements, are part of theft’s gravamen?  The State concludes by arguing that the interests served by Hall’s first prong are served if the statutory elements of the lesser offense are subsumed by the charging instrument and the defendant, like Lang, raised no notice complaint.
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Presentation Notes
“Is Tex. Penal Code § 21.16(b) a content-based restriction on speech that is subject to strict scrutiny?”

2. “May a court of appeals find a statute unconstitutional based on a manner and means that was not charged?”

3. “Is Tex. Penal Code § 21.16(b) facially constitutional?”

Jones was charged with one violation of section 21.16(b) of the Texas Penal Code, commonly referred to as the “revenge porn” statute. As limited by the charging instrument, he was charged with disclosing visual material he obtained under circumstances in which the depicted person would have a reasonable expectation of privacy and revealing the identity of the depicted person through accompanying or subsequent information he provided. The trial court denied his pretrial application for writ of habeas corpus, which alleged the statute violates the First Amendment by failing strict scrutiny and overbreadth analysis.

The court of appeals reversed. It held that section 21.16(b) is a content-based restriction on speech because it “penalizes only a subset of disclosed images” and thus concluded that it must satisfy strict scrutiny, which is both the highest constitutional burden and one placed on the State to prove.  The court held that section 21.16(b) failed strict scrutiny because it permitted conviction of a hypothetical defendant who had no reason to know the circumstances surrounding the visual material’s creation. In an abundance of caution, it also held that the statute prohibited a substantial amount of protected speech compared to its legitimate sweep.

The State argues that the speech at issue deserves intermediate scrutiny, at best.  First, reference to the content of speech does not inevitably trigger strict scrutiny; the inherent value of the speech—including whether it is on a public or private matter—plays a role in choosing the appropriate standard. Second, the Court of Criminal Appeals in Ex parte Thompson, 442 S.W.3d 325 (Tex. Crim. App. 2014), set out a framework for applying intermediate scrutiny to a photography statute by focusing on the secondary effects of lack of consent and violation of privacy; the Legislature followed this framework to the letter when it enacted Section 21.16(b).

The State also argues that the lower court’s focus on the potential for a “problematic” application to a hypothetical defendant means that it did not rule on the ultimate issue presented to it—whether the offense Jones was accused of committing is facially unconstitutional. Had it properly confined its analysis to the offense as limited by the charging instrument, it would have found that it satisfies even strict scrutiny and is not overbroad.
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Presentation Notes
“Texas Penal Code section 42.07(a)(7) is a content-based restriction that restricts a real and substantial amount of speech as protected by the First Amendment; speech which invades privacy interests of the listener has never been held by the United States Supreme Court to be a category of unprotected speech.”

Sanders was charged with harassment by sending repeated electronic communications with the intent to harass, annoy, alarm, etc. He alleged in his pretrial writ that the statute is facially overbroad. The trial court denied the application.

The court of appeals affirmed. It followed Scott v. State, 322 S.W.3d 662 (Tex. Crim. App. 2010), which held that a similar subsection of the statute at issue does not implicate protected speech because it is directed at persons who have no intent to communicate, only to harm, and invade another’s privacy in a manner reasonably likely to inflict emotional distress. Without an impact on protected speech, the overbreadth doctrine is inapplicable.

Sanders argues that Scott must be overruled. He says that Scott improperly created a new category of unprotected speech not recognized by the Supreme Court—“invasion of substantial privacy interests in an essentially intolerable manner.” He also says that Scott was narrowed by Wilson v. State, 448 S.W.3d 418 (Tex. Crim. App. 2014), which held that evidence of a facially legitimate reason for a phone call does not negate the intent to harass for sufficiency purposes.
�
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“The court of appeals decided a facial overbreadth claim that was not preserved at trial or raised on appeal.”

2. “Is Tex. Penal Code § 42.07(a)(7), which prohibits harassing electronic communications, facially unconstitutional?”

Barton was charged with harassment by sending repeated electronic communications with the intent to harass, annoy, alarm, etc. He alleged in his pretrial writ that the statute is unconstitutionally vague. The trial court denied the application.

The court of appeals reversed. It held that the statute is both vague and that it is facially overbroad, i.e., it restricts a substantial amount of protected speech relative to its plainly legitimate sweep. It rejected the State’s argument on rehearing that Barton never raised an overbreadth challenge in the trial court, apparently because the State addressed the argument in its response brief.

The State raises procedural and substantive issues in its petition. First, it argues that words like “chilling” and “overbroad” do not invoke the overbreadth doctrine when no cases are cited, no framework is articulated or applied, and the point appears to be that a vagueness challenge becomes easier when protected speech is implicated. Second, the court of appeals was wrong to disregard Scott v. State, 322 S.W.3d 662 (Tex. Crim. App. 2010), which held that the statute at issue does not implicate protected speech. Per Scott, a defendant in Barton’s shoes cannot mount a facial vagueness challenge when the statute is clear as applied to his conduct. Moreover, the overbreadth doctrine is not applicable outside the First Amendment context. The State disagrees that Wilson v. State, 448 S.W.3d 418 (Tex. Crim. App. 2014), implicitly overruled Scott on this point by recognizing harassing speech that also has an intent to communicate an idea. Finally, the State points out that 1) vagueness and overbreadth are incompatible because the latter requires a definitive construction of the statute, 2) the existence of “dual intent” harassment would not mean that protected speech is improperly restricted, and 3) Section 42.07(a)(7) includes an objective standard, eliminating vagueness concerns.
�
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“Justice Rodriguez’s dissent contains the same criticisms of the challenged statute that were addressed in 1983 by the U.S. Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals in Kramer v. Price. Kramer v. Price struck down the previous version of Penal Code § 42.07. The defects described in Justice Rodriguez’s dissent and in Kramer v. Price have not been resolved.”

2. “The Fourth Court of Appeals’ decision, and the text of the challenged statute depart from accepted social norms and common understandings of the meaning of the word “harassment.’ The Fourth Court’s majority opinion, and the challenged statute, risk the criminalization of conduct that would not generally be considered ‘criminal’ by people of ordinary intelligence. Further, because of this disconnect between common sense and the text of the statute, the challenged statute chills emotional speech, hyperbolic speech, metaphor, sharply critical speech and sexual overtures; TRAP § 66.3 (f).”

3. “Texas Courts’ attempts to construe § 42.07 have led to baffling decisions that show no discernible logic or pattern that can be followed. The resulting authorities constitute a case by case evaluation of whether the subject speech makes reference to an ‘ultimate sex act.’ As a result of this lack of clear guidance, the statute is overly broad and chills too much speech.”

4. “The Court of Appeals should settle this important question because the statute unconstitutionally delegates prosecutorial decision-making and because the potential chilling effect is broad, TRAP § 66.3(b).”

Nuncio was charged with harassment, see Tex. Penal Code § 42.07(a)(1), for communicating with the complainant about her breasts and sexual history and stating that “she could not be a virgin and work for him.” He filed a pretrial application for a writ of habeas corpus, alleging that the statute is unconstitutionally overboard and vague. The text of Tex. Penal Code § 42.07(a)(1) provides that a person commits the offense of harassment if “with intent to harass, annoy, alarm, abuse, torment, or embarrass another, the person . . . initiates communication and in the course of the communication makes a comment, request, suggestion, or proposal that is obscene[.]” “Obscene” is defined as “a patently offensive description of or a solicitation to commit an ultimate sex act, including sexual intercourse, masturbation, cunnilingus, fellatio, or anilingus, or a description of an excretory function.” Tex. Penal Code § 42.07(b)(3). The trial court denied relief.

Nuncio appealed. He claimed the statute is overbroad because it infringes on protected speech and is vague because it fails to give adequate notice and enables arbitrary enforcement. The court rejected Nuncio’s overbreadth argument. The law, it held, does not prohibit “a substantial amount of protected speech, but merely prohibits communication of unprotected obscenities intended to harm the person to whom they are directed.” It opined that a violator “is not engaging in a legitimate communication of ideas, opinions, or information, but has only the intent to inflict emotional distress for its own sake.”
Next, the court held that it is not vague. A person of ordinary intelligence would recognize that it prohibits the making of “obscene comments, requests, or suggestions in an effort to emotionally harm the person to whom the comments, requests, or suggestions are made.” Nor is it susceptible to arbitrary enforcement. It only permits enforcement when obscene comments or remarks are directed by the perpetrator to a particular victim with intent to harm.

Dissenting in part, Justice Rodriguez disagreed with the majority’s vagueness holding. She reasoned that “a solicitous social communication between two people in a bar could include obscene comments or requests intended to embarrass or harass the other, or heated arguments between significant others could include obscene comments intended to annoy, torment, or embarrass the other.” She also criticized subsection (a)(1) for failing to specify “who is the victim of the intended harassment by obscenity.” In her view, it “could be extended to a situation in which the defendant makes an obscene comment to one person but his intent is to harass a different person, i.e., ‘another.’”

Nuncio reurges his overbreadth and vagueness claims. Relying on Justice Rodriguez’s dissent, he contends that the statute fails to identify whose sensibilities must be offended. Thus, it suffers the same problems recognized in Kramer v. Price when the predecessor statute was reviewed. 712 F.2d 174 (5th Cir. 1983). Subsection (a) does not clarify who has to find the communication offensive. In particular, there is no “standard or guidance to employ regarding the use of unconventional forms of language such as obscene metaphors or hyperbole or gossip or rumormongering.” There is also a disconnect between the common understanding of “harassment” and the prohibited conduct. Adding to the problem, he alleges, is the statute’s lack of limiting contextual requirements like “(1) repetition (2) pursuit (3) continuation of purpose and/or (4) persistence after notice.” Finally, pointing to subsection (b)(3), he argues that courts, including the Court of Criminal Appeals, have struggled to define (b)(3)’s “ultimate sex act.” As a result, the case-by-case hair-splitting does not constitute “‘fair notice’ for people of ordinary intelligence.”



DULIN, PD-0856-19 & PD-0857-19

1. “Should an improper and

4 nonobligatory ‘ ’ that penalizes the
1 failure to timely pay a court-cost, fee, or restitution

® . be struck?”

2. “In striking down court-costs and fees, does the
judiciary violate by infringing on
. the Legislature’s power to enact costs, fees, and the

#  state’s budget and the Governor’s budget power?”

| 3. “Is the ‘Time Payment Fee’ because it
imposes a time-frame for court-cost and fee payment
and disincentivizes late payment and the failure to

pay?"


Presenter
Presentation Notes
1. “Should an improper and prematurely assessed nonobligatory ‘Time Payment Fee’ that penalizes the failure to timely pay a court-cost, fee, or restitution be struck?”��2. “In striking down court-costs and fees, does the judiciary violate separation of powers by infringing on the Legislature’s power to enact costs, fees, and the state’s budget and the Governor’s budget power?”��3. “Is the “Time Payment Fee” proper because it imposes a time-frame for court-cost and fee payment and disincentivizes late payment and the failure to pay?”
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